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County of Alameda, General Services Agency – Purchasing

RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
to

RFQ No. 901696
for

Fire and Intrusion Alarm Services
Networking/Bidders Conferences held on March 8, 2019
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), Questions & Answers (Q&A) Document has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A Document will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

Responses to Questions from the Bidders Conferences and Written Questions
Q1) Page 7 of the RFQ, Section D. (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 8. (Fire Alarm/Protection Services) a.(1) states:
 All accessible devices shall be functionally tested in accordance with current NFPA, State and local codes.
Will the inspections match up with what is required per NFPA 72 2016 Edition?  
A1) Yes, the inspections must meet all current NFPA 72 2017 requirements, and all other NFPA, state, and local requirements.
Q2) Pages 9 to of the RFQ, Section D. (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 8. (Fire Alarm/Protection Services) Subsection b. (Testing & Inspection Services includes, but is not limited to) Numbers 8 and 9. (Sprinkler Test & Inspection (Wet Sprinkler System) and (Fire Pump System) states: 
Wet System Test & Inspection (Includes tamper, flow, gate valve, Fire Dept. connection plastic caps, Valve trim & main drain valve)

Hose Valve outlets

Standpipe Test & Inspect

Standpipe System

Standpipe Test & Inspect

Fire Pump System

Fire Pump - Diesel with Flow Meter

Fire Pump – Electric with Flow Meter
Will the inspections match up with what is required per NFPA 25 California Amended Edition 2013?  

A2) Yes, the inspections for these systems must match up with what is required per NFPA 25 California Amended Edition 2013 and/or the newest edition.
Q3) Will the frequency of inspections include both the annual, quarterly, and 5-year inspection on Sprinkler and standpipe systems?
A3) Yes. The frequency of inspections include both annual, quarterly inspections, and the 5-year (Title 19) inspections.
Q4) For Fire Pumps, will the frequency of inspections include both Weekly and monthly as required by NFPA 25?
A4) Yes, the Fire Pump Inspections must be completed per NFPA 25 inspection frequency.
Q5) Are weekly or monthly tests for the fire pumps a part of the scope of this RFQ?
A5) Yes, the County requires 51 Weekly Diesel Fire Pump Inspections per year, 11 Monthly Electric Fire Pump Inspections per year, and 1 Annual Inspection for Both Diesel and Electric Fire Pump Inspections per NFPA requirements. 
Q6) Where on the bid form do we capture the price of the Fire Pump System?
A6) Please refer to the revised bid excel form issued in Addendum 2 to submit your bid for these services.
Q7) Will alternate terms and conditions be considered for only the monitoring service?
A7) The County will review the vendor’s terms and conditions during the Contract Negotiation stage after this RFQ has been awarded.  

Q8) Will the County be able to sign vendor specific service paperwork?

A8) Any contract(s) that may result from this RFQ will be signed between the County and the awarded vendor(s). Any changes in the County’s terms and conditions and the suggested terms and conditions of the awarded vendor(s) will be subject to the County Counsel’s review and approval.
Q9) Page 10 of RFQ, Section 9. Portable Fire Extinguishers and Fire Extinguishing Systems: 

Are bidders required to bid that portion or could that be excluded?
A9) The bid requirement for Fire Extinguishers and Fire Extinguishing Systems have been modified. Bidders are not required to bid for these services. The County is requesting the bid price for these services for informational purposes only and will not be included in the bid evaluation. The bid form has been revised to allow bidders to provide the inspection rates for these services as a supplemental information. Please refer to Revised Excel Bid Form included in the Addendum 2.
Q10) Do you have counts for how many Fire Extinguishers are due for this service this year? If so, will the Extinguishers be gathered at one central spot for inspection?
A10) These requirements have been removed from the bid form. Please refer to the revised excel bid form issued in Addendum 2 to include your optional inspection rates for these services. 
Q11) Page 11 of RFQ, Section 9. Portable Fire Extinguishers and Fire Extinguishing Systems, Item b.1.(a) 
Monthly Fire Pump Testing and Inspections required by Cal-Fire.
Did you mean monthly Extinguisher inspections?
A11) This requirement has been removed from the RFQ. 
Q12) Which vendor services your Fire and Intrusion Alarms now?
A12) The current vendors are AA ACME, Allied, Battalion One, Bay Alarm, Orr Protection, Pacific Signaling, Protection One, RN Security, Sabah International, Sentry, and Siemens.
Q13) Page 13 of the RFQ, Section D. (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 12. (Organization Requirements) a.(2) states:

C-7 Low Voltage Systems Contractor license.

If the bidder has a C-10 doesn’t that supersede the need for a C-7?  So if you have the C-10 is the C-7 not needed?
A13) Bidders may submit C-10 license in place of C-7 license.
Q14) What percentage is given to a SLEB vendor? 

A14) Bidders are not required to be a certified SLEB vendor to bid for this RFQ; however, certified SLEB vendors are encouraged to bid and are qualified to receive preferential points per the County SLEB program. Only SLEB prime bidders certified as Small Local Emerging Business will receive a 10% preference point toward their bid price; a non-SLEB prime bidder subcontracting to SLEB businesses will not receive preferential point. For more information on SLEB, please visit: https://www.acgov.org/auditor/sleb/overview.htm 
Q15) Will the County consider awarding to a non-Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) entity?
A15) The County will award multiple contracts to lowest priced responsible bidders including non-SLEB bidders. 

Q16) Is being a SLEB a requirement for this RFQ?
A16) Bidders are not required to be a certified SLEB vendor to bid for this RFQ; however, certified SLEB vendors are encouraged to bid and are qualified to receive preferential points per the County SLEB program. For more information on SLEB, please visit: https://www.acgov.org/auditor/sleb/overview.htm
Q17) Will a prime vendor be given preferential points when subcontracting to a SLEB?
A17) A non-SLEB prime bidder will not be given preferential points for subcontracting with a SLEB vendor. Sub-contracting will not garner additional points for non-certified SLEB primes. 
Q18) Exhibit D – Device List South (FIRE & INTRUSION ALARM RFQ DEVICE LIST): 
There is a column that lists after hours for testing.  Is this just on the fire alarm system?

A18) Information provided in Exhibit D is applicable to any services required for each building. 
Q19) Is the after-hours only for the notification devices (horn strobes) or all devices?  
A19) After-hours testing is for notification devices (horn strobes). 
Q20) Does the afterhours also apply to other systems such as sprinkler?
A20) Other systems, such as the sprinkler system may be performed during normal hours. 
Q21) If the afterhours testing applies to other systems such as the sprinkler, is it only for the annual where water is being flowed, and not for the quarterly inspections?
A21) The testing will be scheduled in advance prior to inspection.
Q22) Exhibit H – Device List Downtown Oakland (FIRE & INTRUSION ALARM RFQ DEVICE LIST):
1325 Portland Ave, Albany, CA lists a water flow bell but no sprinkler risers, which would indicate there is no sprinkler system for that building.  The water flow bell would indicate that there is sprinkler coverage.  Please correct or advise how bidders should interpret this.

A22) Information in the Device List(s) (Exhibit H) is intended for providing bidders with estimates only and are not to be construed as a commitment.  No minimum or maximum is guaranteed or implied.  
Q23) Exhibit A - Bid Form: 
Do bidders have to bid on all services and buildings in the region?
A23) Bidders are not required to bid on all services in each region. Under Fire Services worksheet, bidders may bid for only Fire Alarm Inspection Services, or for Fire Pump Test and Inspection Services, or for both. Under Monitoring Services worksheet, bidders may bid for only Fire Alarm Monitoring Services, or for Intrusion Alarm Monitoring Services, or for both. Bidders must bid on the Hourly Rates worksheet. Bidders must bid on ALL buildings in each region.
Q24) When entering data into the (Excel) Bid Response Form, there are four total inspections in a year: is it possible to change one of the inspections into the annual and leave the other three as quarterly (one quarterly inspection will count as the annual) or should we allocate expenses for the four quarterly and one annual? 

A24) The bid form has been revised to include three (3) quarterly inspections and one (1) annual inspection. Please use the revised bid form issued in Addendum 2 to submit your bid. 
Q25) Are the cost of lift rentals covered by the county or the bidder?
A25) When the contract(s) is awarded to the winning bidder(s), the bidder(s) will be responsible for covering the cost of lift rentals if required.
Q26) Can the County provide the make and model numbers of the digital dialers for fire alarm systems and burg/intrusion systems?
A26) The County is unable to provide this information at this time.
Q27) Can the County provide the excel sheets that the device list PDFs are derived from?  This will greatly assist bidders when it comes to estimating costs.
A27) Exhibits E thru H – Device List have been converted into excel files and included in Addendum 2. 
Q28) Can the County identify any buildings that have a check-in procedure that exceeds 10 minutes?
A28) There are no buildings that exceeds a 10-minute check-in.  The County requires prior arrangements be made for access to all buildings as the County is a restricted access environment.
Q29) Can the County indicate which buildings, if any, will have 2-3 dedicated parking spots for technicians on the day of test and inspections?
A29) The County does not provide dedicated parking spots for Contractors at any County building.
Q30) Will the County provide a dedicated staff member to provide access to all areas of the building with Fire alarm and sprinkler coverage occurring on the same day of inspections?
A30) Yes, the County will provide a dedicated staff member to provide access on the day of inspection. 
Q31) Can the County indicate whether testing can be performed during normal hours (Monday- Friday 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM) or after hours (Monday- Friday 6:00 PM to 2:00 AM or Saturdays)?
A31) Information regarding testing during business hours is provided in Exhibit D – Building List. The Response Time is described on page 11 of this RFQ, under Section D (Specific Requirements), item 10.
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